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Ghana National Petroleum Corporation

Report of the directors
For the year ended 31 December 2020

The Directors have thé pleasure of presenting this annual report to the Government of
Ghana, through the Minister for Eneérgy, for the year ended 31 December 2020.

1. Principal activities

The Ghana National Petroleum Corporation (GNPC) is Ghana’s National Gil Company

(NOC), established in 1983 by PNDC Law 64, to support the government's objective of
providing adequate and reliable supply of petroleum products and reducing the country's

dependence on crude oll imports, through the development of the country’s own petroleam

resources.

The Objects of the Corporation are to undertake the exploration, development, production

and disposal and refining of crude-oil.

The Corporation shall:

a) Promote the exploration and the orderly and planned development of the
petroleum resources of Ghana;

b} Ensure that Ghana obtains the greatest possible benefits fram the development of
its petroleum resources;

¢) Obtain the effective transfer to Ghana of appropriate technology relating to
petroleum operations; o

d} Ensure the training of citizens of Ghana and-the development of natiorial
capabilities in all respects of petroleum operations; and

e) Ensure that petroleum operations are conducted in such manner as to prevent

- adverse effects on the environment, resources and people of Ghana.

2. Mission statement

To lead the sustainable: exploration, development, production and disposal of the
petroleum resources of Ghana, by leveraging the right mix of domestic and foreign
investments in partnership with the people of Ghana.

3. Responsibilities of the Board of Directors in the preparation of the financial
statements

The Directors are responsible for preparing financial statements for each -acecounting
period, which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Corporation and the
Group as at the end of the accounting period.

In preparing-the financia! statements, the Directors are required to:

= Select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consisteritly;

= Make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

* ‘State whether applicable accounting standards have been fallowed, subject to any
material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements, and

= Prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis, unless it is Inapproprlate to
presume that the Corporation will continue in business.
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Ghana National Petroleurn Corporation

Report of the directors
For the year ended 31 December 2020

The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with
reasonable accuracy, at any time, the financial position of the Corporation and Group which
ensures that the financial statements comply with relévant legislation and accountmg_
standards. The Diréctors are aiso responsible for safeqguarding the .assets of the

Corporation and Group and taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of
fraud and other irregularities.

4, Results of operations

The results for the year and the state of affaifs of the’ Corporation are shown .in the.
enclosed financial statements.

5. Board of Directors

The composition of the Board ©f Directors of the: Corporation at 31 December 2020 is
reported on page 2 of the fihancial statements.

Directors’ fees for services rendered during the year under review are disclosed in note 36
on page 74 of the financial statements.

6. Capacity building programmes for Directors during the year

Extensive training was provided for the Directors to enhance their capacity in discharging
their duties during the ya&ar.

7. Changes in Chief Executive.

On 21 April 2022, Mr. Opocku-Ahweneen Danquah was appoirited as acting Chief Execiitive
of the Corporation effective 22 Aprll 2022 by the office of the President,

8. Particulars of entries in the interest register

The Directors have no interest to warrant an entry in the intergst register during the year.
9. Compliance with relevant legislation and accounting framework

The Tinancial statements, including comparative year information, are prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and in the manner

required by the Ghana National Petroleum Corporation Law, 1983 (PNDC Law 64),

Petrgleum Revenue Management Act, 2011 (Act 815) as amended and the Companies Act,
2019 (Act 992).

10.: Subsidiary companies

The Corporation owns sixty per cent (60%) of the issued shares of Mole Motel Limited, a
company Incorporated in Ghana, te carry on the businéss in the hospitality industry.

The Corporation also owns ninety per cent {90%) of the shares of Prestea Sankofa Gold
Limited, a company incorperated in Ghana and is into mining operations.

The Corporation also owns hundred per cent {100%) of the shares of GNPC Exploration
and Producticn Company Limited, a company incorporated in Ghana to carry out the
business: of crude oil exploration and production.
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Ghana National Petroleum Corporation

Report of the directors
For the year ended 31 December 2020

i1. Dividend

The Directors-do hot recommend the payment of dividend for't'he'year ended 31 December
2020 (2019: Nil).

12. Corporate social responsibility

An amount of US$ 64,664,145 was spent on fulfilling the corporate social responsibility of
the Corporation (2019: US$20,784,113). Sponsorship activities for 2020 included road
infrastructure for various communities, health and education.

13. Going concern

The Directors have assessed the ability of the Corporation to continue as & 'going corncern
and have a reasonable expectation that the Corporation and its subsidiaries have adequate
resources to. continue in operational existence for:the foreseeable future. Thus, the going
concern basis has been adopted in preparing the annual financial statements. of the
‘Corporation and the Group.

Approval of the financial statements

The financial statements of the Corporation and th_e- Group were approved by-the Board of
Directors on ’?“"\ 2022 and signed on their behalf by:

CLASSIFICATION: CONFIDENTIAL



m
DeIOIt te P. 0. Box GP453  Deloitte & Touche

Accra Chartered Accountants

Ghana The Deloitte Place, Plot No. 71,
Off George Walker Bush Highway
North Dzorwulu
Accra
Ghana

Tel: +233 (0) 302 775 355
Email: ghdeloitte@deloitte.com.gh
www2.deloitte.com/gh

Independent auditor’s report
To the Government of Ghana, through the Minister for
Energy

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the consolidated and separate financial statements of Ghana National
Petroleum Corporation and its subsidiaries (the Group and Corporation), set out on pages
12 to 75, which comprise the consolidated and separate statements of financial position as
at 31 December 2020, and the consolidated and separate statements of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, consolidated and separate statements of changes in equity
and consolidated and separate statements of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes
to the consolidated and separate financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory disclosures.

In our opinion, the consolidated and separate financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated and separate financial position of Ghana National Petroleum
Corporation as at 31 December 2020, and its consolidated and separate finandial
performance and its consolidated and separate cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), the Ghana National
Petroleum Corporation Law, 1983 (PNDC Law 64), Petroleum Revenue Management Act,
2011 (Act 815) as amended and the Companies Act, 2019 (Act 992). i

~Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs).
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’
Responsibilities for the Audit of the consolidated and separate Financial Statements section
of our report. We are independent of the Group and Corporation in accordance with the
requirements of International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ (IESBA)
International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International
Independence Standards) (IESBA Code) and other independence requirements applicable
to performing audits of Ghana National Petroleum Corporation and its subsidiaries. We
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code, and in
accordance with other ethical requirements applicable to performing the audits of Ghana
National Petroleum Corporation and its subsidiaries.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

MAKING AN

IMPACT THAT

MATTERS
Sirte
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Deloitte

Independent auditors’ report

To the Government of Ghana, through the Minister for
Energy

Other Matter

year ended 31 December 2019 were audited by another auditor who expressed an
unmadified opinion on those statements gh 15 September 2021.

The consolidated and.separate financial statements of the Group and Corporatien for the

Other Information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the Report of the Directors which we obtained prior to the date of the report. The other

information does not include the consolidated and separate financial statements .and our
auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated and separate financial statements does not cover the other
Informatiofnt and we do not express an audit opinion or any form of assurance conelusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consoiidated and separate financial statéments, our
responsibiity is to read the other information and, in deing s0, consider whether the other
information. is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears-to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other

information, we are réquired to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this.regard..
Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters. that, in our professional judgement, were of most
significance in our aiidit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters.
were addressed in the context of ‘our audit of the financial statemeérnts as a'whole, and in
forming our opinicn thereon, ‘and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters:
For the matter below, our description of how our-audit addressed the matter is provided
in that context,

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit
of the financial statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our
-assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements. The results
of our audit procedures; incl.uding the procedures performed to address the matterbelow,

provide the basis for our audit opinion on the &ccompanying financial statements..
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Deloitte

Independent auditors’ report
To the Government of Ghana, through the

Minister for Energ

o | p R T e

Valuation of petroleum projects.

The net petroleum project values constitute
approximately thirty-four percent (34%) of
total assets as at the end of the vear.
Petroleum projects represent GNPC's share
of the oil development cost incurred by the
operators of the various production ancd
development sites.

These are recognised based on ‘the cash
calls received from the operators during the
year. The balance is amortised at the year-
end using the Unit of Production Method
which involves elements of estimates.

We have Iidentified _
petroleum projects as a key audit matter as
a result of its materia! size and sansitivity
 {o changes in the underlying assumptions
of valuation, '

the wvaluation of

We performed the fallowing audit procedires with respect to
‘the valuation of Petroleum Projects: We

‘Based on the procedures described above, we found
management’s valuation the Petroleuim Projects reasonable,

o remove’ extraneous amounts (e.q., offsetting and

in estimating theé Corporation’s share of crude -oil and
gas reserves,

Analyzed the detailed list of Petroleum Project additions

reconciling to zero),

QObtained. evidernce through inspection of the invoices
and corroborative  inquiry combined with  dui
understanding of the tnderiying asset, that the amount
was approprlate to capitalize and confirmed that these
amount were capitalized to the appropriate project.
Traced these to the Petroleum Agreements and other
technical documents,

Tested the. basis on which additions weré recorded oy
critically -examining the varjous cash calis and funding
files support received fram the various field operators.
Examiried inveices, authorisations, contracts,
agreements, and other data supporting: ownership of
assets capitalised during. the period,

We examined management's assessment of
impairment by Unit 9f production method including
assessing the reasonableness of key assumptions used

Documented and tested considerations used to arrive at.

uitimate resefvas,

Oil and gas reserve estimation

The estimation and measurement of oil and
9as reserves is considered a key audit
matter as it impagts material elements of
the financial -statements inclyding
ameriisation of Petroleum Project assets.

The estimation of ‘the Reserves ifivolves

quantities based on de&térministic and
probabilistic methods,

The scope of our procedures in respect to
reserve  estimation included contingent
resources that impact the financial
statements, relating to the various

for development.

technical uncertainty in assessing reserve

producing fields which Have. been justified |

We-performed the. follewing audit procedures with respect to
management’s estimation of the oii and gas reserves,
* confirmed our understanding of the Corporation’s oil

Based on the procedures described above, we found
management’s Based on the procedures described above,
we found management's estimation of the gas and ail
reserve reasonable. .

* we assessed the appropriateness of reliarice on

« we held discussions with management’s internal

+ reconciled and compared the reserve. valumes

* we compared the resérves estimated

and gas reserve estimatlon process as well as the
centrol environment implemented by management;

management’s internal reserve specialists by
performing procedures to evaluate their objectivity
and competency;

specialists  to understand  the basis  and
appropriateness of the estimate;

applied throughout ‘the relevant
processes such as  the petroleum
amaortization computation; and

accounting
project

! by the
operators of the fields.
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Deloitte

Independent auditors’ report
To the Government of Ghana, thro ugh the
Minister for Energy |

Responsibilities of the Directors for the consolidated and separate Financial
Statements

The directars are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated
and separate financial statements in accordance with the International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) and. the requirements of the Ghana National Petroleum Corporation Law,
1983 (PNDC Law 64), Petroleum Revenue Management Act, 2011 (Act 815) as amended,
and the Companies Act; 2019 (Act 992), and for such internal control as the directors:
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated and separate financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud.or error.

In preparing the consolidated and separate financial statements, the directors. are
responsible for assessing the G_ro_upf's-abi_li_ty'_to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations,
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Corporation.’s'ﬁna'ncial
reportirig processes.

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated and separate
financial statements

‘Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated and
separate financial 'sta't’ements.as a whole are free fram material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or errar, and to issue an auditers’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance Is a high level of assurance but is not.a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs will always detect a -material misstatement when it exists,
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually 6r -
In the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions:
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in .accordance with ISAs, ‘we exercise professional judgement and
maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit, We aiso:

* Identify and assess the fisks of material misstatement of the consolidated and separate
financial statements, whether due to fraud or -error, .design ‘and perform audit
procedures. respongsive to those Tisks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basig for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatément resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve coliusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepreseritations, or the
override of internal control.
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Deloitte.

Independent auditors’ report
To the Government of Ghana, through the
Minister for Energy ‘

+ Obtain an understanding of internal control retevant to-the audit in orderto design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the. eéffectivensss of the Group’s internal contral.

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of aceounting palicies ‘used and- the reasondbleness of

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the directors,

+ Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting and based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a, materfal uncertainty

exists related to-events or conditions that may cast significant. doubt on the Group’s.
ability to continue as a going concern, If we conclude that-a material uricertainty exists,
we are-required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated and separate financial statements:or, if such disclosures

are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

+ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content .of the consolidated and
separate financial statements, including the disclosures, .and whether the finaricial
statements représent the underlying transactions-and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentatiori.

«  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities.or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance
of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the directors and audit committee regarding, among other matters,
the ptanned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance Wit'lj a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding i'nde'p'fendence, and to .communicate with
them all refationships and other matters that mayir:_ea_sona'bly be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied. :

From the matters.communicated with those charged with governance we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consofidated and separate
financial statements of the current year and are @therefor‘e- the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’'s report unl'es_fs law or regulation preciudes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rfa:re circumstances, we determiine that
a matter should not be communicated in our r’_"epo_rbb:ecause the adverse conisequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigzhi the public interest benefits. of such’
‘communication. .
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Deloitte.

Independent auditors’ report
To the Government of Ghana, through the Minister for
Energy

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In accordance with the Seventh Schedule of the Companies Act, 2019 (Act 992), we
expressly state that:

1. We have obtained the information and explanations, ‘which to the best of our:
knowledge and bielief were necessary for the purpase of the audit.

2, In our opinion: _ _ )
* proper books of accounts have been kept by the Group, so far as appears from
our examination of those books,,

+ the information and explanat_ions given to us, were in the manner required by
the Companies Act, 2019 (Act 992) and give a true and fair view of the:

a. statement of financial position of the Group at the end of the financial year,
and _ '

b. statement of profit or loss'and other comprehensive income for the financial
year.

» the group accounts have been properly prepared in accordance with the
Companies Act, 2019 (Act 992), to give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs, and the profit or loss of the Corperation and its subsidiaries.

3. The Group’s statement of financial position and statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income are in agreement with the accounting records and returns,

4. The group account has been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act,
2019 (Act 992), to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs, and the profit or
loss of the Corporation and its subsidiaries.

5. We are independent of the group, pursuant to Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2019
{Act 992},

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditors’ report is
aniel Kwadwo Owusu (ICAG/P/ 1327).

o (e o WM:-&Q

For and on behalf of Deloitte & Touche (ICAG/F/2022/129)
Chartered Accountants

The Deloitte Place, Plot No. 71

Off George Walker Bush Highway

‘North Dzorwulu

Accra Ghana
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Ghana National Petroleum Corporation

Consolidated and separate statement of profit

or loss and other comprehensive income
For the year ended 31 December 2020

CLASSIFICATION: CONFIDENTIAL

Group Corporation
Notes 2020 2019 -2020 2019
_ uss$ US$ _ uss uss
Revenue 5 758,713,868 593,497,125 758,537,560 592,895,750
Cost of sales 6 {(756,265,502) {434,010,579) {756,239,708) (433,957,533)
Gross profit 2,448,366 159,486,546 2,297,852 158,938,217
Other operating income 7 22,569,459 39,842,583 22,568,370 39,835,708
General & administrative o o o _ o
eXpenses {168,971,076} (136,981,999} {168,706,910) (_139;08'4,579)
Cther operating expenses {2,034,058) (1,739,759} {2,034,088) {1,739,75S)
Operating (loss)/profit: {145,987,339) 60,607,371 {145,874,776) 57,949,587
Finance cost 10 (17,521,714) (23,__37'8_..'626')'_ (17,517,120) (23,373,697}
Share of loss of jolnt venture 20b - {313,392). - -
(Loss) /profit before tax {163,509,053) 36,915,353 (163,391,896) 34,575,890
Taxation i1lb 17,768 (32,393) - -
{Loss)/profit after tax (163,491,285) 36,882,960 {163,391,896) 34,575,890
Qther comprehensive income for the year
Ttéms thiat will not be reclassified subsequently
to profit or loss: _
Remeasurement losses.of _ o _ _ _ _ _
defined benefit obligation 31.2 (779,019) (188,769 (779,019) (188,769)
‘Items that may be reclassified ) '
subsequently to profit or loss::
Translation Difference 122,358 17,405 - -
Other comprehensive income for the _
year, net of tax, — (656,661} L171.364) 779,019} (188,769)
Total comprebensive income for the _ _ _ _ _ _
_Yyear, net of tax (164,191,285} 36,711,596 (164,570,9-15) 34,387,121
Profit for the year attributable to:
Owners.of the Corporation (163,103,042) 36,981,732 = -
Non-cantrolling Interests {388,243) (98,772) = -
(163,491,285) 36,882,960 - -
Total comprehensive income attributahble to:
Owners of the Corporatlon (163,775,356) 36,803,406 - -
Non-controfling Interests (372,590) (51,810} = -
(164,147,946) 36,711,595 - -
The notes 1 to 41 form an integral part of these financial statements.
12



Ghana National Petroleum Corporation
Consolidated and separate statement of
financial position

As at 31 December 2020

Grotp. Corporation
Assets Notes 2020 201% 2020 2018
Non-current assets uss uss uUss Us$
Propert'\/__, plant & equipment 12 65,927,987 38,415,633 69,581,260 37,954,599
Intangible assets 13 2,061,602 .2,459,258 2,061,602 2,459,258
Exploration and. evaluation
assats 14 93,055,569 75,731,361 79,140,868 65,678,147
Petroleum projects 15 578,604,250 640,265,282 578,604,250 640,265,282
Other non-current assets 16 3,310,164 3,079,282 3,310,164 3,079,282
Other financial assets 17 - 6,590,519 - 6,590,519
Due from government
agencies- 18 390,512,170 500,_-378,087' 390,512,170 500,378,087
Investment in subsidlaries. 19 - Co- 22,720 22,720
Investiment in associate and '
Joink ventitres 20 - 1,086,586 - 229,828
Total non-current assets 1,137,471,742  1,268,006,008 1,123,233,034 _1,256,657,722
Current assets
Inventories _ 21 278,704 254,234 269,524 241,082
Duefrom related parties 22 - B 57,623 14,750,575' 10,843;462
Trade and other receivables 23 383,460,531 262,524,855 383,438,198 262,496,932
Prepayment 24 373,250,466 341,849,956 373,250,466 341,849,956
Taxation Ila 3,333 - - -
-Cash & bank balances 25 55,140,328 24,011,123 55,122,182 23,989,081
Total current assets 812,133,362 628,697,792 826,830,945 639,420,513
Total assets 1,949,605,104  1,896,703,800 1,950,063,979 1,805,078,235

The notes 1'to 41 form an integral part of these financial statements

13
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Ghana National Petroleum Corporation

Consolidated and

S€parate statement of

financial position (continued)
As at 31 December 2020
Group Corporation

Equity and Liabilities Notes 2020 2019 2020 2019
Equity uUss Uss ussg uss.
Stated capital 26 3,332,726 3,332,726 3,332,726 3,332,726
Petroleum equity fund 27 20,028,545 155,969,344 20,028,549 155,969,344
Petroleum project fund 2g 226,740,369 317,229,765 226,740,369 317,229,766
Decommissiening Fund 8.1 22,300,000 - 22,300,000 -
Retained earnings 85,016,417 23,544,062 98,528,455 36,269,178
_Transiation reserve: 2,942,593 2,835,888 - -
Equity attributable to

equity holders of the: S _ _
parent 360,360,654 502,911,788 370,930,099 512,801,014
Non-contrélling interests (3,393,960} (3;018,807) - -
Total equity 356,966,694 489,892,979 370,930,099 5_1-2,‘80-1,_014
Non-current Babilities

Training & technology fund 29 42,402,851, 42,880,711 42,402,851 42,880,711
Medium teri loan 30 713,120,274 773,367,120 712,626,627 772,873,473
Deferred tax liabilities lic 21,300 33,088 - -
Empioyee henefits obligation 31 2,234,647 1,508,699 2,234,647 1,508,699
‘Total hon-current _ _ _ _ _
Habilities 757,779,072 817,795,598 757,264,125 817,262,883
Current liabilities ' '

Trade & ottier payables 32 834,859,338 579,013,424 821,869,755 566,014,338
Corperate tax liabliites ila - 1,759 - -
Total current Habilities 834,859,338 579,015,223 821,869,755 566,014,338
Total liabilities 1,592,638,410  1,396,810,821 1,579,133,880  1,383,277,221
Total equity and ilabilities 1,849,605,104  1,896,703,800 1,950,063,979  1,896,078,235

Director: .. . \

Date; ‘S. %'lr:

The hotes 1'to 41 for

-
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Directors....

Date:

an integral part of these financiai statements.
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Ghana National Petroleum Corporation

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
For the year ended 31 Pecember 2020

1 General information

Ghana National Petroleum Corporation is a Corporation established by the Ghana Nationaf
Petroteum Corporation Law,. 4} ar Co :
registered office is st Petroleum House, Tema. Its ultimate controtling party is the Government of
Ghana through the Ministry for Energy. '

The prl'_nci_pa] activities of the corporation are exploration, development, production, disposal and
refining of crude oil,

2 Application of new and revised standards; amendments and interpretations

New and ‘amended IERS Standards that are effective for the current year
Impact of the initial application of Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions Amendment to
IFRS 16

In May 2020, the IASB Issued Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions {Amendment to IFRS 16) that
provides practicai relief ta I'esse_es_- in accounting for rent concessions occurring as a direct
consequence of COVID-19, by introducing a practicat expedient to IFRS 16. The practical expedient
permits a lessee to elect not to assess whether a COVID-19-relsted rent concession is a lease

The practical expedient applies only to rent concessions occurring as a direct consequence of

CQVID-19 and enly If all of the following congitions are :met:

a) The change in lease Payments results in revised consideration for the lease that is substantially

the same as, or less than, the consideration. for the. lease immediately preceding thé change: _

B) Any reduction in lease Payments affects only payments originally due on or before 30 June 2621
' ets this condition if it results in reduced lease payments on or before 30 Junie.

2021 énd inlcr'eased_ lease payments that extend beyond 30 Juhe 2021); and
C) There is no substantive change to other terms and conditions. of the lease,

Impact on accounting for changes in lease pa yments applying the exemption

The Group has applied the practical expedient retrospectively to all rent-concessions that meet the
conditions in IFRS-16:46B; and has not restated prior periad figures..

Amendments to IFRS 3 Definition of a business

The Group has_ adopted the amendmients to IFRS 3 for the first time in the, current year. The

amend'me__nt_s clarify that while businesses usually have outputs, outputs are not required for an

acquired set of activities and asseats must include, at a mintmum, an-in put-and a substantive process

that toge’ther:signiﬁcantly contribute to the abiti_t-y-'td Create outputs.

The amen‘dméhts remove the assessment of whether_marketj'particip:a nts are capable of replacing
any missing-inputs or processes and 'cont_inuin‘g to produce outputs. The a‘m_e_ndment'_s also introduce

19
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Ghana National Petroleum Corporation

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020

Under the opti_ona_l concentration test, the acquired set of activities and assets is not & business if
substantially all of the fair-value of the gross assets acquired is concentrated in a single identifiable
asset or group of similar assets.

The amendments are applied prospectively to all business combinaticns and asset acquisitions for
which. the acquisition date is on or after 1 January 2020.

Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 Definition of material

The Group has adopted the amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 for-the first time in the current year.
The amendments make the definition of material in JIAS 1 easier to understand and are not intended
to alter the underlying concept of materiality in IFRS Standards. The concept of "'obscuring' material
information with immaterial information has been included as part of the new definition.

The threshold for materiality influencing users has been changed from ‘could influence’ to 'could
reasonably be expected to influence’. The definition of material in IAS 8 has been replaced by a
reference-to.the definition of material in IAS 1. In addition, the IASB amended other Standards and

the Conceptual Framiework that contain a definition of 'material’ or refer to the term ‘material’ to
ensure consistency.

New and revised IFRS Standards in issue but not yet effective

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the Group has riot applied the fallowing
new and revised IFRS Standards that have beén issued but are not yet effective;

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 - Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investoir
and its Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 deal with situations where there is @ sale or congribution
of agsets between an investor and. its associate or joint venture. Specifically, the amendments state
that gains or losses resulting from the.loss of control of a-subsidiary that does not contain a business
in a transaction with-an associate or a joint vernture that'is accounted for using the equity method,
are recognised in the parent’s profit or loss anly to the extent of the unrelated investors’ interests
in that associate or joint venture. Similarly, gains and losses resulting from the re-measurement of
investments retained in any former subsidiary (that has become an associate or a joint venture
that is accounted for using the equity method) to fair valué are recognised in the former parent’s
profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated investors’ interests in the new associate or joint
venture.

The effective date of the amendments has yet. to be set by the Board; however, earlier application
of the:amendments is permitted. The directors of the Group anticipate that the application of these
amendments may have an.impact an the Group finandial statements in future periods should such
transactions arise.

Amendments to IAS 1 — Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current

The amendments o IAS'l _affection[y'the presentation of liabilities as current or non-current in the
statement of financial position and not the amount or timing of recegnition of any asset, liability,
income or expenses, or the information disclosed about those items.

CLASSIFICATION: CONFIDENTIAL



Ghana National Petroleum Corporation

Notes tothe_co'nsolidated financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020

The amendments clarify that the classification of liabiiities as current of non-current is based on
rights that are in existence at the end of the reporting period, specify that classification is unaffected

explain that rights are in existence if covenants are complied with at the end of the reporting period,
and introduce a definition of ‘settfement’ to make clear that settlement refers to thetransfer to the
counterparty of cash, equity instruments, other assets or services. The amerdments are applied
retrospectively for annual periods beginning on or after 1 lanuary 2023, with early application.
permitted. '

Amendments to IFRS 3 - Reference to the Conceptual Framework

The amendments update IFRS 3 so'that it refers to the 2018 Conceptual Framework instead of the.
1989 Framework.

They also add to IFRS 3 a requirement that, for obligatirJns within the scope of IAS 37, an acquirer

Finally, the amendments add an explicit statement that an acq uirer does ot recognise contingent
assets acquired in a business combinatjon,

The amendments are effective for-business-com_binations for which the date_ of acquisition is on or
after the beginning of the first annual period beginning on or after 1 Jan uary 2022, Early application
is' permitted if an entity also applies all other updated references (published together with the

dpdated Conceplual Framework) at the same time or earliet.
Amendments to TAS 16 - Property, Plant and Equipment—Proceeds before Intended Use

The amendments prohibit-deducting from the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment any
proceeds from selling items produced before that asset is available for use, i.e, proceeds while
bringing the assét to the focation and condition necessary for it to be capable of cperating in the
manner intended by management, Co'nse_quently-, an entity recognises such sales proceeds and
related costs in profit or loss, The entity measures the cost of those- items in accordance with 1IAS
2 Inventories.

The amendmients also clarify the mea ning of ‘testing whether an asset is functioning properly’. I1AS
16 now specifies this as. assessing whether the technical and physical performance of the asset ig
such that it is capable of being used in the production or supply of goods or services, for rental to
others, or for administrative purposes.

If not presented separately in the statement of comprehensive income, the financial statements
shall disciose the amounts of proceeds and cost included in profit or loss that relate to items
produced that are not an output of the entity’s ordinary activities, and which line item(s).in the
-statement of comprehensive incoime include(s) such proceeds and cost.

The amendments are applied retrospectively, but only to items of property, plant and equiprient
that are brought to the location and condition necessary far them to be capable of operating in the
manner inténded by management on.or after the. beginning of the eariiest period presented in the
financial statements in which the entity first applies the amendments.

21
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Ghana National Petroleum Corporation

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020

The entity shall. recognise the cumulative effect of initiaily applying the amendments as an
adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings (or other component of equity, as
appropriate) at the beginning of that earliest period presented.

The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022, with early
application permitted,

Amendments to IAS 37 - Onerous Contracts—Cost of Fulfilling a Contract

The amendments specify that the ‘cost of fulfilling’ a contract comprises the ‘costs. that relate
directly to the contract”. Costs that relate directfy to a contract consist of both the incremental costs
of fuifilling that contract (examples would be direct labour or materials) and an allocation of other-
costs that relate directly to fulfilliing contracts (an example would be the -ailocation of the
depreciation charge for an item of property, plant and equipment used in fulfilling the contract).

The amendments apply to contracts for which the entity has not yeét fulfilled all its obligations at
the beginning of the annual reporting period in which the entity first applies the amendments,
Comparatives are not restated.

Instead, the entity shall recognise the cumulative effect of initialll_y.applwn_g' the. amendments as an
adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings or other component of equity, as
appropriate, at the date of initial application.

The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022, with early
application permitted

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020
The. Annual Improvements. include amendments to four Standards.
IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards

The amendment provides additional relief to a subsidiary which becomes a first-time adopter Jater
than its parent in respect of accounting for cumulative translation differences. As a result of the
amendment, a subsidiary that uses the exemption in IFRS 1:D16(a) can now also elect. to measure
cumulative translation differences for all foreign ‘opetations-at the carrying amount that would be
included: in the parent’s consolidated financial statéments, based on the parent’s date of transition
to IFRS: Standards, if no adjustmerits were made for consolidation procedures and for the effects
of the business combination in which the parent acquired the subsidiary. A similar election is
available te an associate or _Jomt venture that uses the exemption in IFRS 1:D16(a).

The amendment is &ffective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022, with early
application permitted.

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

The amendment clarifiés that in applying the '10 per cent’ test to assess whether to derecognise a

financial liability, an entity includes only fees paid or recelved between the entity (the borrower)

and the lender, including fees paid or received by gither the entity or the lender on the other's
behalf,

The amendment is applied prospectively to modifications and exchanges:that occur on or after the
date the entity first applies the amendment.

22.
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Ghana National Petroleum Corporation

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020

application permitted,
IFRS 16 Leases
The amendment removes the illustration of the reimbursement of leasehold improvements,

As the amendmient to IFRS 16 only regards an illustrative exa mple, no effective date is stated.,

23
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Ghana National Petroleum Corporation

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020

3 Summary of significant accounting pD|lCIes
3.1 Statement of compliance

The consolidated and separate financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards.

3.2 Basis of preparation

The consolidated and separate financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis.
Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration giver in exchange for gaods
and services.

Fair vaiue is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability i an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether
that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the
fair value of an asset or a liability, the Corporation takes into account the characteristics of the
asset or iiability if market participants would take those characteristics intg account when pricing’
the:asset or liability at the measurement date.

Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial statements
is determinied on such basis.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1,
2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are cbservable and

the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in.its entirety, which are described as
follows:

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or  labilities
that the entity can access at the measurement date;

« Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are

observabie for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and
= Level 3 inpufs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

24
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Ghana National Petroleum Corporation

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020

3 Summary significant accounting policies (continued)
3.3 Basis of consolidation

The: consolidated and separate financial statemrients incorporate the financial statements of the
Corporation and entities (including structured entities} controlled by the GNPC and its subsidiaries.
Control is achieved when the Cdrperation: '

° has power over the investee; _
* is exposed, or has rights, to.variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and
* -has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

GNPC reassesses whether or not it.controls an investee if the facts and circumstances indicate that
there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control listed above: When the
Corporation has less than a ‘majority of the voting rights of an investee, it has power over the
investee when the voting. rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee unilateraliy.

GNPC considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether or not the Corporation’s.
voting rights in an investee are sufficient to give it power, including:

* the size of the Corporation’s halding of voting rights relative to the size and. dispersion of
holdings of the other vote holders;

¢ potential voting rights held by the Corporation, other vote holders or other parties;
¢ rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

¢ any additional fa_ct;s and circumstances that indicate that the Corparation has, or does rot
have, the current ability to direct the relevant activities at the time that decisions need to
be made, including voting patterns at previous shareholders’ meetings.

Consotidation of a subsidiary begins when the Corporation obtains control over the subsidiary and-
ceases when the Carporation loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of
a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive Income from the date the Corporation gains control until the
date when the Corporation ceases to; control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are-attributed to the owners of
the Corporation and to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is
attributed to the owners of the Corporation and to the non-controlling interests even if this resuits
in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. When necessary, adjustments are made
to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their-accounting policies into-line with the Group’s
accounting policies. '

All _intr_agroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transacticns

between members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation .

25
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Ghana National Petroleum Corporation

Notes to the consolidated financijal statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020

3 Summary of significant accounting policies (co_htinued)

3.4 Interestsin Joint arrangements

3.4.1 Joint operations

A joint operation is a type of Jjoint-arrangement whereby the parties that have Joint-control of the
arrangement have rights to the assets and obligations for the Iiabifities_,. relating to the
arrangement. In relation to jts interests in joint operations; the Corporation recognises jts:

Assets, indluding its share of any assets held jointly;

Liabilities, inctuding its share of any. liabilities incurred jointiy;

Revenue from the sale of its share of the output arising from the Joint operation;
Share of the revenue from the sale of the output by the Jjoint operation; and
Expenses, including its share of any expenses incurred jointly,

. s 0 0

3.4.2. Joint venture

Is adjusted to recognise changes in the Corporation’s share of nét"assets of the joint venture si’nce

the acquisition date, Goodwil} refating to the Joint venture is included in the carrying amount.of the
Investment and is neither amortised nor.individually tested for impairment.

The statemerit of profit or loss and other comprehensive income (QCI) reflects the Corporation‘s
share of the resuits of operations of the joint venture, Any change in OCI of that investee is
Presented as part of the Corporation’s OCI, In addition, when there has been change recognised
directly in the equity of the joint venture, the Corporation recognises its share. of ‘any changes,
when applicable, in the statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from
transactions hetween the Corporation and the. joint venture. are eliminated to the extent of the
interest in the joint venture,

statements.
3.4.3, Investments in associates

Anh associate is an entity aver which the Grou p has significant influence. Significant influence is the
power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control
or joint control over those policies.

Thé results and assets ang Habillties of -assotiates are incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method, an investment in an
associate is initially recognised in the consolidated statement of financial ‘position at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of thie profit or loss ‘and-other comprehensive,
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3  Summary of significant accounting policies {(continued)
3.4.3. Investments in associates (continued)

income of the associate. When the Group’s share of losses of an associate exceeds the Group's
interest in that associate (which includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of

_the Graup’s net investment in the associate}, the -Group discontinues recognising its share of further
losses

Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate,

Aninvestment in an associate is accounted for using the equity method from the date on which the
investee becomes an associate. On acquisition of the investment in an associate, any excess of
‘the cost of the investment gver the Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities. of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which is. included within the carrying amount -of
the investment. Any excess of the Group's share of the net fair value of the Identifiable assets and
liabilities: over the cost of the investment, after reassessment, is recognised-immediately in profit
or loss in the period in which the investment is acquired.

The requirements of IAS 39 are applied to determine whether it is necessary to recognise any
impairment Joss with respect to the Group’s investment in an associate. When necessary, the entire
carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is-tested for impairment in accordance. with
IAS 36 Impairment of Assets as a single asset by comparing its-recoverable -amount (higher of
value in use and fair value less costs to .sell) with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss
recognised forms part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment
loss is recogniséd in accordance with IAS 36 to the extent that the: recoverable amount of the
investment subsequently increases.

The Group discontintes the use of the equity method from the date when the investment ceases
to be an associate, or when the investment is classified as held for sale. When the Group retains
an interest in the former associate and the retained mterest is a financial asset, the Group measures
the retained interest at fair value at that date-and the fair value is regarcieci as its fair value on
initial recognition in’ accordance with IAS 39. The difference between the carrying amount of the
associate at the date the equn:y method was discontinued, and the fair value of any retained interest
and any proceeds from. disposing. of a part interest in the associate or joint venture is mcluded in
the determination of the gain or loss on disposal of the associate or jeint venture. In addition, the
Group accounts for ali amounts previously recognised in other compreherisive income in relation to
that associate an the samé basis as would be required if that associate had directly disposed of the
related assets or fiabilities. Therefore, if a.gain or joss previously récognised in other comprehensive:
income by that associate would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets
or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the dain or'loss from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification
adjustinent) when the equity method'is discontinued.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an associate but the Group continues to use the
equity method, the Group reclassifies to profit or loss thie proportion of the gain or loss that had
previously been recognised in other comprehensive income relating to that reduction in ownership.
interest if that gain or loss would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the refated assets
ot liabilities.
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3 Summary of significant accounting policies { c_ontin_ued)
3.4.4. Investments in-.associates {continued)

When'a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group, profits and losses resulting from the
transactions with the associate are recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial statements oniy
to the extent of interests in the associate that are not related to the Group,

Investments in associates are measured at cost in the corporation’s separate financial statements

3.5 Foreign currencies

The Group’s consolidated financial statements are presented in US Dollars, which is the same. as
the Corporation’s functional currency. For each éntity, the Group determines the functional currency
and items included in 'the'--ﬁnahti_al statements of each entity ‘are measured using that functional
currency. The Group. presents its financial statements in US Dollars,

the date of the balance sheet;

{ii) income and expenses for each statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
are translated at average exchange rates; and

(it} all resulting exchange differences are recognised as a separate com ponent of equity.

currency spot rate of ekchan‘ge.rulihg a_t'"t_he:_ reportihg date, _ _
Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or toss

3.6 Inventories

Inventories: are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value, The cost of materials is the
purchase cost, determined on first-in, first-out basis, Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price for inventories less alt estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to-make the
saie,

3.7 Provisions
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3 Summary of significant accounting policies {continued)
3.8 0il exploration, evaluation and development expenditure

Oit exploration, evaluation and development expenditure is accounted for using the successful
efforts method. of actounting.

{a) Exploration and evaluation costs

Exploration and evaluation activity involve.the search for hydrocarbon ressurces, the determination
of technical feasibility and the assessment of commercial viability of an identified resource.

Once the legal fight to €xplore has been acquired, costs directly associated with an exploration well
are capitalised as exploration and evaluation intangible assets until the drilling of the welt is
complete and the results have been evaluated. These costs include directly attributable em_ploye_e
remuneration, materials-and fuel used, rig costs and paymenis made to contractors.

‘Geological and gecphysical costs are recognised In the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, as incurred. If no potentially commercial hydrocarbons. are discovered, the.
‘exploration asset is written off through the statement of profit or toss and other comprehenswe
incame as a dry hole, If extractable hydrocarbons are found and, subject to further appraisal activity
(e.g., the drilling of additional wells), it is probabie that they can be commercially developed, the
costs continue to be carried as an intangible asset while sufficient/continued progress is made in
‘assessing the commerciality of the hydrocarbons. Costs directly associated with appraisal activity
undertaken to determine the size, characteristics and commercial potential of a reservair following
the initial discovery of hydrocarb’ons, including the costs of appraisal wells where hydrocarbdns
were not found, are initially capitalised as an intangible asset.

All such capitalised costs are subject to technical, commercial and management review, as well as.
review for indicaters of impairment at least once & year. This is to confirm the continued intent to
develop or otherwise extract value from the discavery, When this is no longer the case, the costs
are written off through the statement of profit or loss and other compreherisive income.

When proved reserves of ofl and. natural gas are identified arid development is sanctioned by
management, the relevant capitalised expenditure is first assessed for impairment-and (if required)
any impairment loss is recognised, then the remaining balance is transferred to oil and gas
properties. Cther than licence costs, no amortisation is charged during the exploration and
evaluation phase,

(b) Development costs

Expenditure on the construction, installation or completion of infrastructure facilities such as
platforms, pipelines and the drilling -of development wells, including unsuccessful development or
delineation wells, is capitalised within oil and gas properties.

3.9 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and short-term deposits in the statement of financial position comprise cash at banks and on
hand and short-term deposits with & maturity of thrée months or less, but exclude any restricted
cash. Restricted cash is not available for use by the Corporation and thereforé is not considered
highty liquid - for example, cash set-aside to cover decommissioning obligations..

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash ‘and cash equivalents consist of
cash and short-term depaosits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts:
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Initial recognition

Oil and gas properties and other property, plant.and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated
depreciation and. accumulated impairment Josses.

Depreciation/ amortisation

Oil and'gas properties are depreciated/amortised on a unit-ef-production basis over the total proved
developed. and undeveloped reserves of the field concerned, except in the case of assets whose
useful life is shorter than the l_ifetime_'_of_the-ﬁeld', in which case the straight-line method Is applied..
Rights and concessions are depleted on the unit-of-production. basis over the total proved developed
and undeveloped reserves .of the relevant area. The unit-of-production rate caiculation for the
deprediation/amaortisation of fieid development costs takes into accountexpenditures incurred to
date, together with sanctioned future development expenditure.

Qther property, plant and equipment are generally depreciated on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives. The following rates are applicable:

Leasehold. tand & buildings. 2-7%
Furniture & fittings. 10-30%
Office & bungalow equipment 20%
Motor vehicles 25%
Other machinery & equipment: 5%
Oit and gas assets Units.of production (UaP)
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3  Summary of significant accounting policies {continued)
Depreciation/amortisation

An item. of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss afising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference betweeri
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of
profit of loss and cther comprehensive income when the assetis derecognised,

The asset’s residuai values, useful lives and methods of deprematlon/amortasatlon are reviewed at
each reporting period and- adJusted prospectively, if appropriate.

3.10 Oil and gas properties and other property, plant and equipment

Major maintenance, inspection and repairs

Expenditu re on major maintenance refits, inspections or repairs comprises the cost of replacement
assets or parts of assets, mspectlon ‘costs and overhaul costs. Where an asset, or part of an asset
that was separately depreciated and is now written off is replaced and it is probable that future
economic: benefits associated with the item. will flow to the Corporation, the expenditure is
capitalised. Where part of the asset replaced was not separately considered as a compenent and
therefore not depreciated separately, the replacement value is used to estimate the carrying
amount of the réplaced asset(s) and is immediately written off. Inspection costs associated with
major- maintenance programmes are capitalised and amortised over the period to the next
inspection. All other day-to-day repairs and maintenance costs are expensed as incurred,

3.11 Other intangible assets
Other intangible assets inciude computer software

Intangible assets: acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of
intangible assets acquired in a business combination is their fair value at the date of acquisition.
Following initial recognition, intangible assets with definite lives are carried at cost less any
accumulated armortisation (calculated on a straight-iine basis over their useful lives) and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Indefinite lived intangibles are not amortised, instead they
are tested for impairment annually.

Internally generated intangibte assets, excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised.
Instead, the related expenditure is recogrised in the statement of profit or loss and cother
comprehenswe Income in the period in which the expenditureé is incurred. The useful lives of
intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are
amortised over the useful economic life and -assessed for impairment whenever thereé is an
indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation peried and the amortisation
method for @n intangible asset with a finite useful life i5 reviewed at least at the end of each
reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected patterri- of consumption of
future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period
or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation
expense an intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income in the expense category that is consistent with the function of the
intangible assets.
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3 Summary of significant accounting Policies (continued)
3.11 Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets include computer software

amount. The recoveérable amount of non-financial assets is the greater of net selling price and valye
in use, In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are. discounted to their present
vaiue using a pre-tax discount rate that reflacts current market assessmerits of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset,

recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have ‘been -determined, net of.
depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Suich reversal is
recogriised in the' statement of profit or loss uniess the asset is carried at revalue amount, in which
case the reversal is treated as a revaluation Increase,

3.12 Financial instruments
Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

Afinancial instrument iS:any contract that gives rise to a financia) assét of one entity and a financial
liability-or equity instrument of another entity.

a. Financial assets.
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recogniticn, as subsequently measured at amortised cost,
'fair--value'through other comprehensive income (OCI), and fair value through profit or loss

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition. depends on the financial asset’s contractual
cash flow characteristics and the Group’s business -model for managing them. With the exception
of trade receivables that do not contain .a significant financing component or for which the Group
has applied the practical expedient, the Group initlally measures a financial asset at its fair value
blus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade
receijvables that do not.contain a significant financing component or for which the Group has applied

the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price determined under IFRS 15,
32

CLASSIFICATION: CONFIDENTIAL




Ghana National Petroleum Corporation

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020

3 Sum mary-of significant accounting policies (continued})

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through
OClI, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are ‘solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI)”
on the principal amount outstanding., This assessment is referred t6 as the SPPI test and is
performed at an instrument level.

‘Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequernt measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

OFinancial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments) _

OFinancial assets at fair value throdgh OCI with recycling of cumulative gains and.
losses (debt instruments)

OFinancial assets designated at fair value through OCI with ho recycling-of cumulative
gains and losses upon derecognition (equity instruments)

» [dFinancial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Y VY

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

This category is the most relevant to the Group. The Group measures financial assets at.amortised
cost if both of the following conditions are met:

» The financial asset is held within a business mode! with the objective to hold financial

~ assets in order to collect contractual cash flows; and

» The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount cutstanding.

Financial assets at -amortised cost, are subsequently measured using the effect_ive interest (EIR)
method and are subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or less when the
asset is derecognised, madified or impaired. The Group's financial assets at amortised cost includes
trade receivables and amounts due from government,

Financial assets at fair value through OCI (debt instruments)

The Group measures debt instruments at fair value through OCI if both of the foliowing conditions
are met:
¥» The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective of both holding
to coilect contractual-cash flows and selling and
» The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates. to cash flows
that are solely'payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
For debt instruments at fair‘value through QCI, interest income, foreign exchange revaluation and
impairment logsses or reversals are recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income and computed in the same manner as for financial assets measured at

amortised cost. The remaining fair value changes are recognised in OCI. Upon dereccgnition, the
cumulative fair value change recognised in OCI is recycled to profitorloss.
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3.13 Financial instruments {continued)

Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI {equity instruments)

Upen initial recoghition, the Group can elect to classify irrevocably its equity investments. as equity
instruments desighated at fair value through OCI when they meet the definition of equity under
IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not fheld for trading. The classification is
determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis,

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to profit or loss. Dividends are
recognised as other income in the statement of profit or Joss and other comprehensive income
when the right of payment has been established, except when the Group benefits from sich
proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset, in which ¢ase, such gains are
recorded in OCI. Equity instruments designated at fair value through OCI are not subject to.
impairment assessment. '

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets held for trading, financial
assets’ designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit .or loss; or fihancial assets
mandatorily required to be measured at fair value, Fina ncial assets are classified as held for trading
if they are acquired for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term

Derivatives; including separated embedded derivatives, are also classified as held for trading unless
they are designated as effective hedging instruments. Financial assets with cash flows that are not
solety payments of principal and interest are classified and measured at fair value thredugh profit or
loss, irrespective of the business model. Notwithstanding the criteria for debt instrumerits to be
classified at amortised cost or at fair value through QCI, as described above, debt instruments-may’
be designated at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition if doing so eliminates, or
significantly reduces, an accounting mismatch.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the statement of financial position
at fair value with net changés in fair value recognised in the statement of ‘profit or loss.and other
comprehensive income.

Dividends on Iisl_:edj equity investments are alSo recognised as other income in the statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income when the right of payment has been established.

Derecognition

A financial asset {or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or- part:of a group of similar
financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group's statement of financial
position) when: '
+ The rights to receive cash fiows from the asset have expired
Qr
» The Group has transferred 1%s rights to receive cash flows fram the asset or has assumed
an obligation to pay the received cash flows.in full without material delay to a third party
under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has.neither transferred nor retained
substantially ali the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the. asset.
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Firancial instruments {(continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from:an asset or has entered irito
a pass-thraugh arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent,: it has retained the risks and
rewards of ownership, When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and
rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise the
transferred asset to the extent of its continuing involvement. In that case, the Group-also recognises
an assoclated liability. The transferred asset.and the associated liability are measured on a basis
that reflects the rights-and obligations that the Group has retzined..

atthe lower of the original carrying amount of the.assét and the maxirmum amount-of consideration
that the Group could be required to repay..

Impairment of financial assets

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures.for which there Has not been a _signiﬁ_cant
increase in credit risk sifice initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses. that result from
default events that are possible within the next.12-months (a 12-month ECL),

For those credit exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initiat
recognitien, a loss allowance Is-required for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the
exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (alifetime ECL).

For trade receivables and contract-assets, the Group applies a simplified approach in‘calculating.
ECLs. Therefore, the Group does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a logs
allowance based on lifetima ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has established a provision
matrix that is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-tooking factors-
specific to the debtors and the economic environment, o

For debt instruments at fairvalue through OCI, the Group applies the low credit risk simplification,
At every reporting date, the Group evaluates whether the debt instriment is ‘considered t¢ have
low credit risk Using all reasonable and supportable information thiat is available without undue cost
or effort. In making that evaluation, the Group reassesses the internal credit rating of the debt
instrument. '

The Group cofsiders a financial asset in default when contractual payments are significantly past
due. However, in certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial asset to be in defauit when
internal or external information indicates that the Group Is unlikely to receive the otitstanding
contractual amounts in full before taking into account any credit enhancerents held by the Group.

A financial asset i$ written off when there is no reasoriable expectation of recovering the contractual
cash flows.
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b.  Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recegnition, as financial liabilities at fair value through

profit or loss, loans and borrowungs payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments
in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings
and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings:
Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their dassification, as described betow:
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and
financial Itabiiltles designated upon initial recognition as.at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial jiabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the. purpose of
repurchasing in the near term. This category also inciudes: derivative financial instruments:entered
into by the Group that are not designated as hedging lnstruments in hedge relationships as defined
by IFRS 9. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective. hedging instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income,

Financlal liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss. are
designated at thé initial date of recognition, and onty if the criteria in IFRS 9 are satisfied. The
Group has not. deS|gnated any financial liability as at fair value through profit or loss,

Loans and borrowings

This is the category most relevant to the Group, After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
‘borrowings are subsequently measured at-amortised cost using. the EIR method. Gains and losses.
are. recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR
amortisation process..

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and
fees or costs that are an integral part-of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs
in the statement of profit or loss and cther comprehensive income.

This:category generally applies to interest-bearing loans and borrowings.
Derecognition
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3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Loans and borrowings

c. Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset'and the net amount is reported in the statement
of financial position if there is 5 currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
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3.14 Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are
‘transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects
to be entitléd in exchange for those goods or services. The Group has genera[ly concluded that it
Is the principal in its revenue arrangements, because it typically controls the goods or services
before transferring them to the customer. Cantrol is generally transferred when the product is
physically transferred into a vessel, pipe or other delivery mechanism.

The Group considers whether there are other promises in the contract that are separate
performance obligations to which a portion of the transaction price needs to be allocated (e.g.,
warranties, customer loyaity pomts) In determining the transaction price for the sale of equipment,
the Group considers the effects of variable consideration, the existence of significant financing
components, noncash consideration, and consideration payable to the customer (if.any)

Revenue from the production of crude oil and gas is recognised based on the terms of the relevant
Petroleum Agreement and the Petroleurn Revenue Management Act 815, 2011 (PRMA) as-amended.

The PRMA specifies the sharing of the ¢rude oil proceeds between the State and GNPC. Revénue
therefore represents the equity financing costs and the cash or the equivalent barrels of oil ceded

to the hational oil company out of the carried and participating interests recommended by the
‘Minister of finance-and approved by Parliament.

‘Contract balances

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the
customer. If the Group performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before the
customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned
‘consideration that is conditional.

Trade receivables

A recelvable represents the Group's right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e.,
only the passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is due). The Group’s
summary accounting poficies for financial assets are described in section 3.13.

Contract liabilities:

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Group
has received consideration (oran-amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer
pays consideration before the Group transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability
i5' recognised when the payment is made, or the payment is due (whichever is earlier}, Contract
liabilities are recognised. as revenue when the Group performs under the cantract.
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3  Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
3.15 Borrowing costs

during the period, _
All other borrowing costs are recognised in the statement of profit or.loss and other comprehensive
fncome in the period in which they are.incurred.

'Even-_t"h_ou_gh’-exploration and evaluation assets can be qualifying assets, they generally do not meet
the probable economic benefits’ test and also are rarely debt funded, any refated bhorrowing costs
incurred during this pbhase are therefore generally recognised in the statement of profit or loss-and
other comprehensive income in the periad-in which they are incurred.

3.16 Employee benefit

The carporation operates a defined Contribution ptan and a defined benefit plan. Payments to

defined contribution retirement benefit plans-are recognised as an expense when employees have
.renderec_l service entitling them to the contributions, Under the National pension scheme, the

For defined benefit retirement benefit plans, the cast of providing benefits is determined using the
Projected Unit Credit Method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at the end of each reporttirig
period.

3.17 Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferrad tax.

Current tax
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3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

3.18 Taxation. (continued)

The tax currently-payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit
before tax’ as reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income] because of items of income or expense that are taxable or-deductible in other years and
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Value added tax (VAT)

GNPC does not deal in taxable goods and services. Crude is currently not a taxable supply for VAT
purposes and therefore no VAT input tax relating to the activities of crude can be claimed or
recovered. VAT inputincurred is included as part of the cost of operations and expensed.

VAT is charged on non-trading income other than the interest on investments. Any input tax
related to these taxable services are claimed to the extent that the input VAT is darectly
attributable to the taxable services,

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets.and
liabilities in the consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxabie profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deférred tax assets are generally recagnised for all deductible temporary
differences:to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets. and liabilities are not:
_reco_gm_sed if the temporary difference arises fram the initial recognition (othey than in a business
combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neitier the taxabie profit nor the
accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries and associates, and interests in jolnt vertures, except where the Grotp is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable. that the temporary difference.
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising. fromy deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments and interests are only recognised to the extent that
it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits agdinst which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future

The:carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no-longér probable that sufficient taxable profits will be avaitable to
allow all-or part of the asset to be recovered Deferred {ax liabilities and assets are measured at the
tax’rates that are-expected to apply in the petiod in which the [igbility is séttled or the asset realised,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have heen enacted or substantively enacted by the end of'
the reporting peried.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets refiects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting pericd, to recover
ar settle the carrying amount of its assets and liahilities,
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3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
3.19 Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract s, or contains, a lease. That is, if
the contract conveys the right to éontrof the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The:Group.-appIies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for
short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make
lease payments and right-of-use assetg representing the right to use the underiying assets.

I) Right-of-use assets

The Group recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the leage (i.e., the date
the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets -are. measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease.
liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease ljabilities recognised, initial
direct costs incurred, and lease. payments made at or befe re. the commencement date less any
lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of the |ease term and the' estimated useful lives of the assets,

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to.the Group at the end of the. lease term or the cost
refleécts the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life
of the asset; _

The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies -on
Impairment for non-financial assets.

ii) Lease liabilities

At the commericement date of the lease, the. Group recogriises lease (iabilities measured at the
present value of lease payments to be made over the lease terin. The lease payments include fixed
payments (including In-substance fixed payments) less .any lease incentives receivable, variable
lease payments that depend oh an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual
value guarantees. The |ease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase ‘option
reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and payments of penaities for terminating the
fease, if the lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate:

Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses
(uniess they are ificurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event or condition that
triggers the payment accurs,

In caleulating the present vaiue of lease payments, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate
at the lease commencement date because the interest rate. implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the cemmencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect
the accretion of interest and red uced for the lease payments made. In'addition, the carrying amount
of lease liabilities is remeasured if there Is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in
the lease payments (e.g., changes to fiture payments resulting from a change in an index or rate
used to deteérmine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option te purchase
the underlying asset.

Lease Habilities are separately preserited on the face of the financial statements,
41
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3.19 Leases (continued)
Group as a lessor

leases in which the Group does not-transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidéntal to
ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income arising is accounted for on
a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is included in revenue in the statement of profit or
loss due to its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset.and recognised over the lease

term on the same basis-as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised:-as revenue in the perlod
in which they are earned.

4 Significant accounting judgéments, estimates and assumptions
4.1 Judgements

In the process of applying the Corporation’s accounting policies, management has made the

following judgements, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements.

Joint arrangemaernits

Judgement is required to determine when the Corporation has joint-control over-an arrangement,
which requires-an-assessment of the relevant activities and when the decisions in relation to those
activities require- unanimous consent. The Corporation has determined that the relevant activities
for its joint arrangement$ are those relating to the operating and capital decisions of the
arrangément, such as approval of the capital expenditure program for each year and. appointing,
remunerating and terminating the key management personnel or service providers of the joint

arrangement. The considérations made in determining joint control are similar to those necessary
to-determine control over subsidiaries.

Judgemerit is also required to classify a joint arrangement. Classifying the arrangement requires
the Corporation to assess their rlghts and obligations arising from the arrangement Specifically,
the Corporation considers:

s The structure of the joint arrangement - whether it is structured through a separate

vehicle;

= When the arrangement is structured through a separate vehicle, the Corporation also
considers the rights-and obligations arising from;

» The legal form of the separate vehicle;

e The terms of the contractual arrangement;

¢ Other facts and circumstances (when relevant).

This assessment often requires significant judgement, and a different conclusién on joint controt

and alsc whether the arrangement is a joint cperation or a joint venture, may materially Impact
the accounting.

Contingencies

By their nature, contingencies will be resolved only when one or more uncertath future events oceur
or fail to. accur, The assessment of the existence, and potential quantum, of coritingendes
inherently involves the exercise of significant judgement and the use of estimates’ regarding the.
outcome of future events.
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4  Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions (continued)
4.2 Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financiat year, are described below. The Corporation based
its assumptions and estimates on parameters availabile when the consolidated financial stateéments
were prepared. Existing circumstances and assu mptions about future developments, however, may
change due to market change or circumstances arising beyond the contiol of thé Corporation. Such
changes are reflected in the assumptions when they oceur.

Exploration and evaluation expenditures

The application of the Corporation’s accounting palicy for exploratien and evaluation expenditure:
requires judgement to determine whether future ecoromic benefits are tikely, from future either
exploitation or sale, or whether activities have not reached a stage which permits a reasonable:
assessment of the existence of reserves, The determination of reserves and resources is itself-an
estimation process that requires varying degrees-of uncertainty depending on how the rescurces
are classified. These estimates. directly impact when the Corporation defers exploration and
evaluation expenditure. The deferral policy requires management to make certain estimates and
assumptions about future events and circumstances, in particular, whether an economically viable
extraction operation can be established. Any such estimates and assumptions may change as new
information becomes available. _ _

If, after expenditure is capitalised, information becomes available suggesting that the recovery of
the expenditure is unlikely, the relevant capitalised amount is written off in the statement of profit
or lass and other comprehensive income in the period when the new information becomes-availabie.

Units of production (UOP) depreciation of oil and gas assets _
Oil and gas properties are depreciated using the UOP method over total proved developed and
undeveloped hydrocarbon reserves, This results in a depreciation/amortisation charge proportional
‘to the depletion of the anticipated remaining production from the field,
The [ife of each item, which is assessed at least annually, has regard to both its physical life
limitations and present assessments. of economically recoverable reserves of the fiefd at which the
-asset is located,
These calculations require the use of estimates and assumptions, inclading the amount of
recoverabie reserves and estimates of future capital expenditure, The calculation of the UOP rate
of depreciation/amortisation could be impacted to the extent that actual production in the future is
different from  current forecast production’ based on tofal proved reserves, or future capital
expenditure estimates change. Changes to prove reserves could arise due to changes in the factors
-or assumptions used in estimating reserves, inctuding: _ _

+ The effe_;:_t on. proved reserves of differences between actual commadity prices and

commodity price assumptions;
* Unforeseen operational igsues.
Changes in estimates are accounted for prospectively.

Fair value measurement

In estimating the fair value of an asset or liability, the corporation uses mariket-cbservable data
to the extent that it is available. Where Level 1 Inputs are not available, the corporation-engages
third party qualified valuers to perform the valuation.
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5 Revenue

Group Corporation
2020 2019 2020 2019
uss Uss uss. uss
Gross crude oil revenue 388,341,366 732,491,390 388,341,366 732,491,380
Oil revenue used to.recover cost 37,049,615 70,633,880 37,049,615 70,633,880
Government royalties: (97,268,992) (182,301,141) (97,268,992) (182,301,141)
GCB Bank Limited loan repayment (7,278,584) (7,458,584)  (7,278,584) (7,458,584)
Becommissioning fund (22,300,000) - (22,300,000) -
Gov't's share of crude revenue (100,097,423) (263,994,382) (100,097,423) (263,994,382)
Net share of crude oil revenue 198,445,983 349,371,163 198,445,983 349,371,163
Net share of gas sales 560,091,577 243,524,587 560,091,577 243,524,587
Services income 176,308 601,375 - -
758,713,868 593,497,125 758,537,560 592,895,750

The Group’s revenue disaggregated by primary geographical. markets is-as. foltlows:

Group Corporation
2020 2019 2020 2019
uUss Uss uss uss
Forelgn sales 161,572,676 349,371,163 161,396,368 349,371,163
Local sales 597,141,192 244,125,962 597,141,192 243,524,587
758,713,868 593,497,125 758,537,560 592,895,750
5.1. Summary of liftings for the year
Jubilee Field _ :
2020 2020 2019 2019
Number of Number of
barrels Amount barrels Amount
o . . uss : _ uss
First lifting 951,954 53,646,416 948,122 57,002,043
Second lifting 992,896 12,234,465 994,251 66,846,477
Third lifting 994,324 41,617,431 993,641 64,500,218
Fourth lifting 951,586 39,746,796 994,557 64,229,486
Fifth lifting 846,755 37,482,030 948,568 60,105,063
Sixth lifting 951,161 47,600,852 922,164 60,839,827
5,788,676 232,327,990 5,801,303 373523114
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5.1 Sumimary of liftings for the year -continued
Tweneboah-Enyan-Nton (TEN) Fields

2020 2020 2019 2019
Number Number
of barrels Amount  of barrels Amount-
Uss uss
First lifting 994,801 50,537,880 994,389 54,201,161
Second Lifting 994,018 36,011,284 995,076 03,169,415
Third Lifting 994,389 38,904,475 995,956 64,852,671
Fourth Lifting - - 994,463 59,545,451
Fifth Lifting - - 945931 58,711,894
2,983,208 125,453,639 4,925,815 301,480,602
Sankofa and Gye Nyame (SGN) Field 2020 2020 2019 2019
Number Number
of barrels Amount  of barrels Amount
us$ . uss
First Lifting 949,206 30,559,737 949,817 57,487,674
Barrels for Repayrment 943,148 37,049,615 1,082,677 70,633,880
1,892,444 67,609,352 2,032,494 128,121,554
6. Cost of sales
Group Corporation
2020 2019 2020. 2019
_ _ uss uss: uss Uss$
Cost associated with production o _
{note 6,1) 200,880,757 77,260,681 200,880,757 77,260,681
Gas product Cost 453,761,223 269,381,361 453,761,223 269,381,361
Insurance Cost 9,921,365 32,961,867 9,941,365 32,961,867
Gas Transmission Cost ‘91,656,363 54,353,624 91,656,363 ‘54,353,624
Qther 25,794 53,046 = -
756,265,502 434,010,579 756,239,708 433,957,533
6.1 Analysis of cost of production
‘Group Corporation
2020 2019 2020 2019
uss USs uss Us$
Jubilee production cost 70,893,005 15,054,716 70,893,005 15,054,716
TEN production cost 23,419,979  (19,234,515) 23,419,979  (19,234,515)
SGN Praduction Cost 31,379,058 25,912,116 31,379,058 25,912,116
Jubllee cost amortisation 8,258,405 8,268,681 8,258,405 8,268,681
SGN cost amortisation 27,610,157 17,403,578 27,610,157 17,403,578
SGN.FPSO amortisation 5,604,047 5,156,320, 5,604,047 5,156,320
TEN FPSO amortisation’ 6,464,446 8,104,468 6,464,446 8,104,468
TEN capital cost amortisations: 27,251,660 16,595,317 27,251,660 16,595,317
200,880,757 77,260,681 200,880,757 77,260,681
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7. Other operating income

Group Corporation
2020 2019 2020 2019
uss uss uUss uss
Interest dn shoit teimn _
investments 167,782 396,558 167,782 396,558
Other Operating Income 4,750,348 126,640,676 4,750,348 26,640,676
Services rendered to oil
exploration. companies 45,917 58,544 45,917 58,544
Transfer from Training &
Technology Fund (Note 28) 2,077,885 10,223,085 2,077,885 10,223,085
Exchange gain 1,753,839 2,256,671 1,752,750 2,249,796
Rental income 16,616 45,440 16,616 " 45,440
Other nen-trading income 13,757,072 133,959 13,757,072 133,959
Profit on disposals of property '
and equipment - 87,650 - 87,650
22,569,459 39,842,583 22,568,370 39,835,708 _
46
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8.

8.. 1

8.2

g,

General and administrative expense

Group Corporation
2020 2019 2020 2019
uss Uss- uUss Uss
Personnel emoluments 21,608,332 23,429,152 21,565,173 23,310,832
General operating expenses: 22,132,856 12,310,536 22,002,004 14,622,758
Corperate Social Investment 64,664,145 20,784,113 64,664,145 20,784,113
Exploration promoction experises '2'38,1'_76 332,657 238,176 332,657
Depreclation and amortization charge 4,132,802 5,069,991 4,042,647 4,978,669
Board expenses 484,319 998,085 484,319 998,085
Bank charges 1,856,465 2,077,318 1,856,465 2,077,318
SOPCL decommissioning expenses
(Note 8.1) 578,097 175,480 578,097 175,480
Credit loss provisions {IFRS ¢ Impact) 21,245,183 42,870,320 21,245,183 42,870,320
Petroleum project expenses {Note’ _ _
8.2} 32,030,701 28,934,347 32,030,701 28,934,347
168,971,076 136,881,999 168,706,910 139,084,579

SOPCL decommissioning expense

The board gave-a directive té decommisslon the oil field, Saltpond Offshore Producing Company Limited
(S0PCL} due to safety and environmental concemns.

Petroleum project expenditure
Group Corporation
2020 2019 2020 2019
us§ uss Uss us$
Ultra-Deep-Water Keta Project 1,008,967 ‘911,432 1,008,967 911,432
North & South Project 2,162,072 1,953,067 2,162,072 1,953,067
TEN Project 4,980,774 4,499,291 4,980,774 4,499,291
OCTP - ENI Project 1,441,382 1,302,046 1,441,382 1,302,046
Deepwater Tano/Cape Three Paint 2,597,690 2,346,576 2,597,690 2.346.576
Jubllee investment 15,951,289 14,409,305 15,951,289 14,409,305
South deep water project 1,681,612 1,519,053 1,681,612 1,519,053
Voltarian basin project 2,206,915 1,993,577 2,205,915 1,993,577
32,030,701 28,934,347 32,030,701 28,934,347
Other operating expense
Group Corporation
2020 2019 2020 2019
~ US$ _ uss uss uss
Boundary Commission Support 2,034,088 1,739,759 2,034,088 1,739,759
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10. Finance cost

The finance cost relates to interest charged in relation to loans and leases,

Group Corporation
2020 2019 2020 2019
Uss Uss uss uss
Litasco Loan - 771,875 - 771,875
TEN/OCTP 6,372,633 12,956,077 6,372,633 12,956,077
Mole Motel Limited 4,594 4,929 - -
Right of use = Building. 148,907 44,868 148,907 44,868
Right of use — FPSO 9,004,829 9_,600,877 5,004,829 9,600,877
GCB Loan 1,990,751 = _ 1,990,751 -
17,521,714 23,378,626 17,517,120 23,373,697
11. Taxation
a. Tax payable
Group .
Balance Charge for ~-Payment: Balance
1 Jahuary the year in the year  Adjustment 31 December
Uss: uss uss usy Uss
Year of assessment _
Up te 2019 1,799 - - {1,166) 633
2020 - - (1,422 (2,544) (3,866)
1,799 - {1,422) (3,710) (3,333)
b, Tax expense '
Group
2020 2019
_ USs$ USs
Income tax charge - 12,031
Deferred Tax: {17,768) 20,382
(17,768) 32,393
c. Deferred Tax
Group _
uss usg
2020 2019
Balance. at. 1 January 39,068 22,850
Charge to profit or loss (17,768) 16,218
21,300 30,068
The tax status.of the Group is subject to review by the Ghana Revenue Authority.
48
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Ghana National Petroleum Corporation

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020

13. Intangible assets

CLASSIFICATION: CONFIDENTIAL

Group
31 December 2020 Intangible - Software Total
Us$ Us$
Cost .
Balance as at 1 Jan 13,426,935 13,426,935
Additions 933,948 933,948
Total 14,360,883 14,360,883
Accumulated amortization
Balance.as at 1 Jan 10,967,677 10,967,677
Charge for the year 1,331,604 1,331,604
_Total ' 12,299,281 13,299,281
Net book value as at 31 December 2020 2,061,602 2,061,602
‘Corporation
31 December 2020 Intangible - Software Total
uss uss
Cost . o _
Balance as at 1 Jan 13,426,935 13,426,935
Additions 933,948 933,948
_Total 14,360,883 14,360,883
Accumulated amortization
Balance as-at 1 lan 10,967,677 10,967,677
Charge for the year 1,331,604 1,331,604
Total Net book value 12,299,281 12,299,281
Net book value as at 31 December 2020 2,061,602 2,061,602
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Ghana National Petroleum Corporation

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020

13. Intangible assets (continued)

Group
31 December 2019 Intangible - Software Total
Uss UsSs:
Cost g |
Balance as at 1 Jarivary 11,065,785 11,065,785
Additions 2,361,150 2,361,150
Total 13,426,935 13,426,935
Accumulated amortization
Balance as at 1 January 9,240,910 9,240,910
. Charge for the year 1,726,767 1,726,767
Total 10,967,677 10,967,677
Net book value as at 31 December 2019 2,459,258 2,459,258
Corporation
Uss US$
Cost
Balance as at 1 January: 11,065,785 11,065,785
Additions 2,361,150 2,361,150
Total 13,426,935 13,426,935
Accumulated amortization
Balance as at 1 January 9,240,910 9,240,910
Charge for the year 1,726,767 1,726,767
Total 10,967,677 10,967,677
Net book value as-at 31 December 2019 2,459,258 2,459,258
54
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Ghana National Petroleum Corporation

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020

14 Exploration assets

Group Corporation
2020 2019 2020 2019
uUss - Us$ uss Uss
Explorco 13,914,701 10,053,214 - o -
Voltaian 79,140,868 65,678,147 79,140,868 65,678,147
93,055,569 75,731,361 79,140,868 65,678,147

CLASSIFICATION: CONFIDENTIAL
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Ghana National Petroleum Corporation

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020

15. Petroleum projects

Group Corporation
‘2020. 2019 2020 2019
Uss uss uUss uss
Joint operations: _
Jubilee field investment o _ _ _ o
(Note 15.1) 82,929,075 87,036,928 82,929,975 87,036,928
Right of use - FPSO TEN 43,430,111 49,894,557 43,430,111 49,894,557
'Right of use — FPSQ SGN 32,661,829 38,265,876 32,661,829 38,265,876
TEMN Projects {Note 15.1) 238,137,174 257,413,037 '_238,1-3_7,1_74 257:413,037

SGN Projects {(Note 15.1)

181,445,161

207,654,884

181,445,161

207,654,884

578,604,250

640,265,282

578,604,250

640,265,282

15.1 Amortization of petroleum projects

The Corporation’s currently oil-producing ftelds are the Jubilee and TEN, Sankofa Gye Nyame {SGN} Oil
fields, and are amaortized based on units of production from each field, in proportion to the Corporation’s
stake in that fleld.

Group Corporation
2020 2019 2020 2019
Cost’ uss Uss$ us$ usy
Balance.as at 1 Jan 862,274,233 721,633,700 862,274,233 721,633,700
Gash call ~ Jubilee 4,151,453 6,957,940 4,151,453 6,957,940
Right of use - FPSO TEN - 57,999,025 - 57,999,025
Right of use - FPSO OCTP - 43,422,196 - 43,422,196
Cash call Additions (TEN) 18,574,973 10,616,947 18,574,973 10,616,547
Cash calls Addition {SGN) 7,874,144 21,644,425 7,874,144 21,644,425
Additions for the year 30,600,570 140,640,533 30,600,570 _ 140,640,533
892,874,803 862,274,233 892,874,803 862,274,233
Amortization
‘Balance as at 1 Jan 222,008,951 183,505,829 222,008,951 183,505,829
Opening Bai adjustment 17,071,887  (17,025,242) 17,071,887 {17,025,242)
lubllee 8,258,405 8,268,681 8,258,405 8,268,681
Right of use - FPSO TEN. 6,464,446 8,104,468 6,464,446 8,104,468
Right of use - FPSO OCTP 5,604,047 5,156,320 5,604,047 5,156,320
TEN. 27,251,660 16,585,317 27,251,660 16,595,317
Sankofa Gye Nyame (SGN) 27,610,157 17,403,578 27,610,157 17,403,578
Depreciation charge for the
_year 92,260,602 38,503,122 92,260,602 38,503,122
_ 314,269,553 222,008,951 314,269,553 222,008,951
Carrying amount at 31 _ _
Dacember 578,604,250 640,265,282 578,604,250 640,265,282

CLASSIFICATION; CONFIDENTIAL
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Ghana National Petroleum Corporation

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020

16. Other non-current assets

Group Corporation
2020 2019 2020 2019
uss Usst uss. uss.
_LNG Project 3,310,164 3,079,282 3,310,164 3,079,282
17 Non-current financial assets
a. Long term investments
‘Group GNPC _
2020 2019 2020 2019
_ US$ - Us$ USs$ . usy
Deposits with banks: - 3,687,917 - 3,687,917
Interest accrued 2,821,402 2,902,602 2,902,602
Impalrment (Note 23.2) {2,821,402) - - -
- ‘6,590,519 - 6,590,519

18 Due from government and its agencies

This represents the net position in respect of transfer of assets and liabilities between the Corporation
and the government. Details of the amount due are disclosed below:

Group Corporation
2020 2019 2020 2019
Uss uss$ uss Usg
Government of Ghana 23,217,406 23,217,406 23,217,406 23,217,406
Ministry of Finance 55,679,212 50,000,000 55,579,212 50,000,000
Tema Qll Refinery 58,404,875 58,404,875 58,404,875 58,404,875
‘Ghana National Gas _ _ _ _ __
Company 78,573,801 76,690,753 78,573,801 76,690,753
MoE Current Account 16,525,332 23,803,916 16,525,332 23,803,916
GEMCORP/BOST Loan 203,933,050 54,552,242 203,933,050 54,552,242
Ministry of Finance - _ . .
Loan - 166,098,785 - 166,098,785
Ministry of Energy — :
-Priority Deficiency GAS 67,361,466 41,579,191 67,361,466 41,579,191
Voita Rivar Authority 99,533,377 216,764,220 99,533,377 216,764,220
' 603,128,519 711,111,388 603,128,519 711,111,388
Less: Impairment (212,616,349) (210,733,30%) (212,616,349) (210,733,301)
As at 31 Pecember 390,512,170 500,378,087 390,512,170 500,378,087

CLASSIFICATION: CONFIDENTIAL
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Ghana National Petroleum Corporation

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020

18.1 Details of impairment

Balance at 1. Jan.

Impairment, during the year

Group
2020
uss

Corporation
2019 2020 2019
us$ uss us$

210,733,301 205,676,154 210,733,301 205,676,154

1,883,048

5,057,147

1,883,048 5,057,147

Balance at-31 December

212,616,349 210,733,301 212,616,349 210,733,301

19 Investment in subsidiaries

Corporation

2020 2019

USs$ USs$

Mole Motel Company Limited 9,570 9,570
Prestea Sankofa Gold Limited 795,905 795,905
GNPG Exploration arid Production' Company Limited 13,150 13,150
Less: Impairment (795,905) (795,905)
22,720 22,720

Name of subsidiary _
Mele Motel Company Limited
Prestea Sankofa: Gold Limited

GNPC Exploration and Production
Company Limited

Piace of
‘incorporation

Proportion of
ownetrship interest

Principal -and operation and voting power heid
activity by the Group

' _ 2020 2019
Hospitality Mole, Ghana 60% 60%
Mining Prestea, Ghana 90% 90%
Cruds oll
exploration and _
production Accra, Ghana 100% '100%

a.  Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have material non-controlling interests to the Group

-are disclosed below.

Name of subsidiary

Mole Motel Company Ltd
Prestea Sankofa Gold Limited

Principal activities

Hotel and hospitality
sarvices

‘Gald Mining

Proportion of ownership
interest and voting power
held by non-controifing.

interest
2020 2019
40%: 40%
10% 10%

Summarised financial information i respect of the Group’s subsidiaries is set out below, The
summarised financial information below represents amounts before intragroup eliminations.

CLASSIFICATION: CONFIDENTIAL
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Ghana National Petroleum Corporation

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

For the year ended 31 December 2020

19 Investment In subsidiaries (continued)

a. Mole Motel Limited

Statement of financial position 2020 2019
Uss Uss
Current assets 41,433 52,702
Non-current assets 340,049 376,243
Total assets 381,482 428,945
Current liabilities 94,491 115,793
Non-current lisbilities 196,244 157,480
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 90,747 155,672
_Total equity and liabilities 381,482 428,945
Statement of profit or loss and other .comprehensive 2020 2019
income :

' uss uss-
Revenue 176,308 601,375
Cost of sales: {25,794) (53,046)
Other income o - 1,088 6,875
General and administrative expenses (227,887) (490,902)
Tax expeiise (‘32-) _('32_,3‘93.)
{(Loss)/profit for the year (76,317} 31,909
(Loss)/profit attributable to owners of the company (30,527) 19,145
(Loss)/profit attributable. to. the non-controlling interests. {45,790} 12,763
(Loss)/profit for the year (76,317) 31,908
Other comprehensive income for the year 11,392 17,405
Total comprehensive income for the year (64,925) 49,313
Total comprehensive Income attributable to owners of the _
cormpany ' _ _ (38,955) 29,588
Total comprehensive income attributable to the non-cantrelling
interests {25,970) 19,725

(64,925) 49,313

CLASSIFICATION; CONFIDENTIAL
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Ghana National Petroleum Corporation

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020

19. Investment in subsidiaries (continued)

b. Prestea sankofa gold limited

CLASSIFICATION: CONFIDENTIAL

Statement of financial position 2020 2019
uss Uss
Current assets - -
Nan-current assets - -
Total assets - -
Cirrent liabilities 12,096,089 12,096,089
Non-curient liabilities 21,026,111 17,884,097
_ {33,122,200) {29,980,186)
Equity attributable to. owners of the. Company '
Nan-controlling interests - -
Total equity & liabilities - -
Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive 2020 2019
income .
Uss Uss
Revenue - -
Cost of sales - -
Other incomes- - -
Expenses (3,648,367 {1,115,354) _
Loss for the year (3,648,367) (1,115,354)
toss attributable to owners of the Compani _(3,2_83,5_3_0) {1,003,818)
Loss attributable to the non-controlling interests. (364,837) (111,535)
Loss for the year (3,648,367) (1,115,353)
Other comprehensive income for'the year - -
. Total comprehensive income for the year (3,648,367) {1,115,353)
T_ota% comprehensive income attributabie to owhers of the. _ _
Company {3,283,530) (1,003,818
Total comprehensive income attributable to nen-controlling _ o
interests {364,837) (111,535)
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Ghana National Petroleum Corporation

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020

19. Investment in subsidiaries (continued)
c. GNPC Exploration and Production Company Limited

Statement of financial position

2020 2019
uss uss
Non-current assets 13,921,379 10,090,765
Current assets 11,559 11,559
Total assets: 13,932,938 10,102,324
Liabilities
Currerit liabilities 799,004 789,004
Nan-current liabilities 14,535,019 10,673,532
Equity attributable to owners of the Company {1,401,084) (1,360,211)
Total equity and liabilities - - 13,932,939 10,102,325
~ Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income o
' 2020 2019
uss ussg
Revenue o - _ -
General administrative costs (40,873) (43,258)
Loss for the year _ {40,873) {43,258}
Other comprehensive income for the year _ - _ -
_ _ _ (40,873) (43,258)
Total comprehensive income attributable to owners of the _ - _
Company _ (40,873) (43,258)
Total comprehensive income attributable to the non-
controfling interests - -
Total comprehensive income for the year (40,873) (43,258)

d. Impairment of subsidiary

The Corporation’s subsidiary, Prestea Sankofa Gold Limited's final face of refurbishment has
been completed. and the plant commenced full eperation in July 2021,

61
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Ghana National Petroleum Corporation

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

For the year ended 31 December 2020.

20. Investmentin associates-and joint ventures

‘Group Corporation
2020 2019 2020 2019
uUss uss UsSs uss$
Gulf Frontiers Logisties Ltd 98,265 98,265 98,265 98,265
Investment in joint venture (note 20a) 988,321 988,321 131,563 131,563
Impairments _ {1,086,586) - (229,828) -
- 1,086,586 - 229,828

Investment in associate and joint-venture were accounted using the equity methiod for the

group and at cost for Corporation (GNPC).
Z0a Joint ventures

Detalls of the Group's material joint ventures-at the en

d of the reporting period are as

follows:
Group Corporation
2020 2019 2020 2019
_ _ o uss$ Us$ Us$ Us$
Saltpond Offshore Producing Company
timited (SOPCL) ) 620,156 620,156 620,156 620,156
-Gulf Frontiers Logistics Limited 98,265 98,265 98,255 98,265
GNPC-Technip Engineering-Services Limited 988,321 988,321 131,563 131,563
Less: Impairment (1,706,742)  (620,156) _(849,984)  (620,156)

1,086,586 - 229,828

Proportion of
ownership interest
and voting power
held by the Group

. e Principal _Pla__ce of .

‘Name of Joint vénture activity incorporation o _

_ T and operation 2020 2019
-Saltpend Offshore .
Producing Company Crude oil Saltpend, _
Limited production ‘Ghana 45% 45%
GNPC-Technip Engineering Technology _
Services training Accra, Ghana 30% 30%

The above joint ventures are accounted for using the
and separate financial statements,

CLASSIFICATION: CONFIDENTIAL

equity method in these consolidated

62



Ghana National Petroleum Corporation

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020

20. Investment in associates and joint ventures (continued)

20b Impairment
The equity investments and Related Party transactions in Saltpond Offshore Producing
Company Limited {SOPCL), Gulf Frontiers Logistic Ltd and GNPC Technip Engineering Services
has been fully impaired due-to cessation of operations.

21. Inventories

Group Corporation
2020 2019 2020 2019
_ Uss: us$: Uss$. us$
Non-trade stock 187,396 230,368 178,216 217,216
Fuel coupen 91,308 23,866 91,308 23,866
278,704 254,234 269,524 241,082

There were no provisions held as at year end (2019: nil).

63

‘CLASSIFICATION: CONFIDENTIAL



Ghana National Petroleum Corporation

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020

22, bue from related parties

This represents the advances.due from related parties:

Group Corporation
2020 2019 2020 2019
Uss. Uss uss uss$
Saitpend Offshoie Producing’ o
campany 6,748,738 6,170,641 6,748,738 6,170,641
Prestea Sankofa - - 20,532,464 .16,884,097
Mole Matel Lifnited - 46,123 221,662 164,535
Technip Limited 12,118 11,500 12,118 11,500
GNPC Exploration and Production _ .
Company Limited - _ - 14,528,914 10,667,427
Less: impairment {6,760,856) (6,170,641} (27,293,321} (23,054,738}
- 57,623 14,750,575 10,843,462
23.Trade and other receivables }
: Group Corporation
2020 2019 2020 '2{}_19
uss. Uss Uss uss
'I'_I:a_de.deb_tqrs - trade marketing 233,771,076 266,528,633 233,771,076 266,528,633
Share of Crude Proceeds from _
Government of Ghana 281,216,326 127,268,747 281,216,826 127,268,747
Other debtors-foreign 55,843,292 47,334,800 55,831,733 47,308,300
Accrued interest income 2,821,402 - 2,821,402 -
Other debtors-local 209,457 93,742 199,848 91,175
Staff debtors 3,993,799 3,030,593 3,992,634 3,030,593
Input VAT 860,193 860,193 860,193 860,193
Tax cradits 567,045 567,045 567,045 567,045
_ 579,283,090 445,683,753 579,260,757 445,654,686
Less: Provision far impairment _ _ _ o
{Note 23.1) {195,822 559} (183,158,897) (195,822:559) (183,157,754}
383,460,531 262,524,856 383,438,198 262,496,932

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled between 30 days from

the date of ihvoice.

23.1 Provision for impairment

‘Group Corporation
2020 2019 2020 2019
uss uss US$ uss
Balance at'1 January 183,158,897 145,346,316 183,157,754 145,344,581
Impairment charge during the
year ' 12,663,662 37,812,581 12,664,805 37,813,173
Balance at 31 December 195,822,559 183,158,897 195,822 559 183,157,754

CLASSIFICATION: CONFIDENTIAL
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Ghana National Petroieum C-orp_or-ation

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020

24. Prepayments.

Advances undertake or pay agreement
Payments for condensates-

Right of use -Building
Other prepaymerits

Corperation
2020 2019
Uss Uss.

294,347,279 271,333,566
77,076,536 67,563,426
828,118 1,622,182
998,533 1,330,782

Group

2020 2019
uss uss
/294,347,279 271,333,566
77,076,536 67,563,426
828,118 1,622,182
998,533 1,330,782

373,250,466

341,849,956 373,250,466 341,849,956

Under the OCTP agreement; the Corporation has a contractual Take or pay obligation ~ to
purchiase and pay for.a minimum guaranteed quantity of gas from the QCTP partners, even
where the cerporation is unable to physically take the required quantities. Up till 2020, the
corporation has been unable to take all the gas it has paid for. The corporation has Fve (5}
years to take up the gas that has been paid for, but which it has been unable to take.

Additionally, the corporation is required to pay for condensates that would have accried to
the OCTP partners had the corporation lifted the required quantities of gas.

25. Cash and bank

Group Corporation
2020 2019 2020 2019
uss Us$ uss uss
Bank ‘54,998,252 23,556,077 54,981,743 23,537,913
Cash 142,076 455,046 140,439 451,168
55,140,328 24,011,423 55,122,182 23,983,081

For the purpose-of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalénts comprise the following at-

31 December:

Group Corpcration
2020 20149 2020 2019
uss USs Uss$. uss
Bank 54,098,252 23,556,077 54,981,743 23,537,913
Cash 142,076 455,046 140,439 ‘451,168
55,140,328 24,011,123 55,122,182 23,589,081

‘CLASSIFICATION: CONFIDENTIAL
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Ghana National Petroleum Corporation

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020

26. Stated capital

27.

This represents amounts received from Government of Ghana towards the corporation's capitalisation.

Petroleum equity fund

Amounts received from government towards financing the Group’s share: of pieduction and development:
cost in various oil fields. The fund represents the unutilised portion. of monies received within equity.
Details of the fund is shown in thé statement of changes in equity.

28. Petroleum project fund

This represents. the funds set aside to execute the Corporation’s projects. Details of the fund is shown
in the statement of changes in equity.

29. Training and technology fund

30,

Training and Technology Fund Is established to support the Corporation’s'manpower development. and
technology needs. '

Group Corporation
2020 2019 2020 2019
_ uss Uss$  UsSs _ uss
Balance at 1 January 42,880,711 38,328,796 42,880,711 38,328,796
Additions 1,600,025 14,775,000 1,600,025 14,775,000
Transfer to profit or loss {2,077,885) {10,223,085) ({2,077,885) (10,223,085)
Balance at 31 December 42,402,851 42 880,711 42,402,851 42,880,711
Medium term loans
Group Corporation
2020 2019 2020 2019
| us$ uss uss _uss
TEN Partner financing 119,445,481 115,813,059 119,445,481 115,813,059
Term L.oan & Borrowing 206,542,699 224,150,454 206,542,699 224,150,454
GaG advance for OCTP Gas 372,612,420 406,313,989 372,612,420 406,313,989
Bank loan 14,519,674 27,089,618 14,026,027 26,595,971
713,120,274 779,367,120 712,626,627 772,873,473.

Terms and conditions of loans

TEN Partner financing

The TEN partner financing is funding provided by the DWT contractor for GNPC’s share of the
development cost for the TEN Fields, GNPC has elected to have the Contractor fund its addltional interest
of 5% in the field at an interest rate of Libor plus 1.5%pa in accordance - with the terms of the petroleum

‘agreement between the government of Ghana and GNPC on one hand and Tullow Ghana Limited, Sabre

0Oil and Gas Limited (PetroSA now owns the Sabre Oil & Gas interest) and Kosmos. Energy L[mlted GNPC

-applies 40% revenué from its shareof crude proceeds fram TEN fields towards debt servicing.

66
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Ghana National Petroleum Corporation

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

For the year ended 31 December 2020

30 Medium term loans - continued

Term Loan & Borrowing

« Llitasco loan - GNPC was directed to take a loan facility of US$200 million from Litasco to
refinance ECG’s HFO debt to Litasco at 3-months LIBOR plus 5.5% payable over three-and

half years. The loan is being serviced by Government.

GoG advance for OCTP Gas

+ Goveriment through the Cash WaterFall Mechanism {CWM) inflows advanced monies to
GNPC to purchase GAS, the amount advanced would subsequently be applied to Gas

debtors as directed by Government.

Bank loan

. GNPC took a US$ 31 million loan facility from GCB Bank to finance the construction of Gas
Pipelines, Substation, Power Transmission Liries and Marine Civil -engineering works in
respect of the relocation of the Karpower Floating Plant from Tema to Sekondi Naval Base,
Takoradi. The loan tenor was for two and half years and attracts an interest of 9.125%.

p.a. This-|loan is being serviced by the government.,

‘31. Employee benefit obligation

The imovernent in the defined benefit obligation is as follows:

2020 2019
us$ Us$:
Balance at.1l January 1,508,699 575,778
Service .cost. 168,110 11'_1','931.
Interest cost 298,507 '_245,64‘3
Actuarial loss 779,019 738,774
Exchange Gain/Loss’ {93,370} -
Benefits payment (426,318) (163,427)
Balance at 31 December 2,234,647 1,508,699
31.1 Employee benefit expense recognised in profit or foss _
2020 2018
uss US$
Service cost 168,110 111,931
Interest cost 298,507 245,643
466,617 357,574
67
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Ghana National Petroleum Corporation

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020

31.2 Remeasurement gains in OCI

2020 2019
_ US_$ Uss$
Actuarial loss 779,019 188,769

a. Defined benefit obligation

The Corperation bears the cost of its retirées’ medical expenses till death. The methed of
accounting and frequency of valuation are similar to those used for defined benefit
schemes. The actuarial valuation to-determine the liability is performed. annually. The
Corporation-also pay Long Service Awards to deserving employee on milestones.

The principal actuarial assumptions used are as follows:

_Starting health care per capita costs

The starting per capita cost is based on plan experience for 2020. No assumption was made:
explicitly for morbidity aging factors. Starting Per capita health care cost is GHS: 5,000.

Discount rate
A rate of 20% péer annum was used.

Post retirement mortality rates

Mortality rates are based on the -So_u‘th_ African SA 1956-62 mortality table with a loading
provision of 20%. This is consisternt with the Mortality table used in Ghana.

Health care trend rates

Assumed rates are based on publicly available data and the general increase in healthcare
-costs and macro-economic theory.

Claims rate

Assumed claim rates are based on the claims trend of GNPC as provided in the data. Hence
a claim rate of 20% is fixed.

Changes In the significant actuarial assumptlons

The calculation of the net defined benefit llablllty is sensitive to the sighificant actuarial
assumptions mentioned above. The following table summarises the effects of changes in
these actuarial assumptions on the defined benefit liability at 31 December;:
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32. Trade and other payables

Group Corporation
12020 2019 2020 2019
Uss uss uUss Usg
Trade & Other Creditors 636,217,588 435,095,112 623,228,005 422,096,026
Lease Liability - FPSO & Building 104,519,767 112,586,826 104,519,767 112,586,826
Local creditors 2,498,015 3,666,844 2,498,015 3,666,844
Staff creditors 3,046,859 1,819,378 3,046,859 1,819,378
SGN Partner financing (QCTP) 8,142,071 5,939,485 8,142,071 5,939,485
~ Jubilee Partner Financing (Note 32.1) 80,435,038 18,397,080 80,435,038 18,397,080
834,859,338 579,013,424 821,869,755 566,014,338

Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settied between 30 to 90 days.

32.1 Jubilee partner financing

This represents ‘the amount the Group owes the Jubilee Partners from in respect of
Deveiopment and Production Costs.

33. Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group's principai financial liabilities; other than derivatives, comprise accounts payable,
bank loanis and overdrafts, and debentures. The main purpose of these financial instruments
is to manage shaort-term cash flow and raise finance for the Group’s capital expenditure
programme. The Group’s principal financial assets, other than derivatives, comprise trade
and other receivables and cash and short-term deposits that arise directly from its
operations.

Risk expostres and responses

The Group manages its exposure to key financial risks in accordance with its financial risk
management policy.

The objective of the policy is to support the delivery of the Group’s financial targets while
protecting future finandial security. Thé main risks that could adversely affect the Group's
financial assets, liabitities or future cash flows are: market risks comprising commodity ‘price
risk, cash. fiow interest rate risk and fareign currency risk; liquidity risk; and credit risk.
Management reviews and. agrees policies for managing each of these risks that are.
summarised below.

The Group's senior management oversees the management of financial risks. The Group's

senior management is supported by a Financial Risk Committee that advises on financial
risks and the appropriate financial risk governance framework for the Group.
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33. Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

It is the Group‘s policy that no trading in derivatives for speculative purposes shall be

undertaken. Currently, the Group does not apply any-form of hedge accounting.

The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing these risks, which are

summarised below,

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will

fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk:

commodity price risk, interest rate risk and foreign currency risk. Financial instruments.
affected by market risk include loans and borrowings, deposits, trade receivables, trade
‘payables and accrued liabilities. Sensitivity analysis relating to key market risks has been

provided below:

{a) Foreign currency risk

During the year the Group has been exposed to currency risk on purchases and borrowings
that are denominated in curtencies other than the functional currency. The other currencies

in ‘which these transactions are denominated are in US$.

The group’s exposure to foreign currency risk, as at the relevant yéar ends, was as follows:

based on foreign currency amounts:-

The following significant exchange rates applied at the following reporting date. with respect

to the US$:
2020 2019
uUss Uss
Exchange raté US$ / GHS 5.7631 5.5406

Credit risk.

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial
instrument or customer contract; leading to a financial loss. The Greup trades only ‘with
recognised, creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s policy that ail customers who wish to
trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures, which include an
assessment of credit rating, short-term’ liquidity and financial positien. The: Group ohtains
sufficient collateral (where appropriate) from customers as a means of mitigating the risk of
financial loss: from defaults. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing

basis, with the result that the Group’s exposure:to bad debts is not significant.

With respect to credit risk arising from the other financiat assets of the ‘Group, which comprise
cash and shart-term. |nvestments, the Group's exposure to credit risk arises from default of
the counterparty; with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amount of these

instruments.
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-33. Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

‘Set out below is an analysis of various credit exposures:

Group
Amount past due but not impaired 2020 2019
' uss Uss.
Past due up to 30 days 36,925,424 4,556,534
Past due 31-60 days 184,627,120 262,674,269
Past due 61-90 days 66,465,763  51,254255
Past due 91-120 days 11,077,627 8,714,662
Past due more than 120 days 70,158,305 126,849,520
Corporation
Amount past due but not impaired 2020 2019
_ Uss$. Uss
Past due up to .30 days 36,922,857 4,427,324
Past due 31-60 days 184,614,287 255,225,416
Past due 61-90 days 66,461,143 49,800,838,
Past due 91-120 days 11,076,857 8,467,540
Past due more than 120 days. 70,153,429 123,252,447

Collateral and other credit enhancement

The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements to cover its credit risks.

associated with its financial assets.

Liquidity risk

Liguidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations
‘associated with financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial
asset. The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds by monitoring its debt rating and
the maturity dates of existing debt and other payables: '

The group’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and fiexibility
through the use of bank overdrafts and bank loans. ' '

The tables below summarise the maturity profile of the Group’s finaricial liabilities based on

contractual undiscounted payments

Group _ _ _
As at December 2020
Less than 1 More than 1 _
year year Total
uss Uss uss
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 123,767,029 216,740,825 340,507,854
Trade.afd other payables 649,552,385 171,097,330 820,649,715
773,319,414 387,838,155 1,161,157,569
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33. Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

As at December 2019

More than 1
Less than 1 year year Total
uss Us$ US$
Interest-bearing loans and
borrowi'ng_s 602,801,361 176,505,244 . 779,306,605
Trade and other payables 327,199,720 126,849,520 454,049,240
930,001,081 303,354,764  1,233,355,845
Corporation
As at December 2020
_ _ More than 1
Less than 1 year year Total
o - uss Uss Uss$
Interest-bearing loans and _ _ _ _ o
_.barrowings : _ 123,767,029 216,247,178 340,014,207
Trade and other payables ' 417,930,889 389,729,241 807,660,130

541,697,918 605,976,419 1,147,674,337

. As at Decembeér 2019 : . .
Less'than 1 year More than 1 year Total

uss Uss uss

Interest-bearing loans and _ 919 OER
borrowings | 602,801,361 176,011,507 /881298
Trade and other payables 317,921,317 123,252,447 441,173,764
920,722,678 299,264,044 1,219,986,722

34, Capital management
The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be able to continue
as going concerns while maximising the return to stakeholdeérs through the optimisation. of
the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged.

In the definition of capital, the group includes, share capital, retained earnings and loans.
The Group is not subjéct to any extérnally imposed capital requirements,

35. Fair value measurement and categories of financial instruments

The carrying ameunts of the group and the Group's: financial assets and fiabilities
approximate their fair values.
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36. Related party transactions

Information about subsidiaries

Principal Percentage of
Activity ‘Country equity/interest
2020 2019
Prestea Sankoefa Gold Limited Mining Ghana 90% 90%
Mole Motel Company Limited ~ Hospitality Ghana 60% 60%

The holding entity:
GNPC is 100% owned by Government of Ghana.
Joint venture/Associate

The C_orpo‘i-at'i_on has a 45% intgrest.in_Saltpondi offshore Corporatior limited and 0.055% in
Airtel Ghana which has been fully impaired

Related party transactions

During the year, the Corporation: entered into the fo!l.owing transactions with its felated
parties:

Year end balances arising from transactions with related'_parti_es-:

Name of related party Amount due to Amount due from
_ _ uss - Uss$

Prestea Sankofa Gold Limited - 20,532,464
GNPC Exploration and Production C6: Lid - 14,528,914
Mole Motel - 221,662
GNPC Technip - 12,118
Saltpond Offshore Producing company - 6,748,738
- 42,043,896

Transactions with related parties _
Transactions with related parties during the year are as follows:

‘Name of related party Transaction type Amount -
uss
GNPC Exploration and Production  Advances and payments of cash
Co. Ltd calls 3,861,487
Airtel Ghana Limited Telecorn services 77,637
_ Advances and payment of
Prestea Sankofa Gold Limited expenses. 3,648,367
‘Saltpond Offshore Producing Advarices and payment of
Company Ltd expenses 578,097
8,165,588
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36 Related party transactions (continued)
Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties
Outstanding. halances at the year-end are unsecured and interest free and settlement occurs
in cash. There have been no guarantees provided or received for any related party
receivables-or payables. For the year ended 31 December 2020, impairment of receivables
relating to amounts owed by related parties was US$ 23,054, 738 (2019:US ¢ 19,181,161).
Compensation of key management personnel and directors of the Corporation

The remuneration of directors and cther members of key management personnel during
‘the year was as follows:

Key management personnel

2020 2019

uss$ Uss

Short term benefits 3,329,517 3,791,045
Directors’ remuneration _ o

2020 2019

Uss uss

Board faes 344,667 355,217

Other hoard expense 243,034 542,868

587,701 898,085

The remuneration of directors and key éxecutives is determined by the Board weifare
comrittee having regard to the performance of individuals and market trends.

37 Commitments for expenditure

Under the Off-Shore. Cape Three Point (OCTP) agreement, the Corporation hasa contractual
obligation ~ Take or pay obligation - to purchase and pay for a minimum guaranteed
guantity of gas from the OCTP partners, even where the corporaticn is unable to physically
take the required quantities,

Addltlona!ly, the corporation is reguired to pay for condensates that would have accrued to
the OCTP partners had the corporation lifted the reguired quantities of gas.

38. Contingent assets and liabilities
Petroleum products supplied to Sage Petroleum Limited by the Corporation in 2012
amounting to US$13,051,837.42 was in dispute, A determination of the case has been made
at the-Commercial Division of the Hight Court of Ghana in November 2020 to the effect that
Sage Petroleum. Limited was to pay an amount of Us$2, 624,058.12 while. Ministry of
Finance(MoF}/National Petrofeum Author;ty(NPA) pay the Corporation US$5,579,212.17,
This has therefore generated a bad debt of US$4,848,567.11.
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39 Decommissioning lfability

40

The Corporation has no liability to decommission of currently producing oil fields, as the
decommissioning liabilities is to be borne by the contractors.

Corporate social investments (CSI)
The Carporation in 2020 executed its CSI projects through the Sustainability Department

‘and GNPC Foundation. The total amount spent for the year was- US$64,664,146, (2019:US$
20,784,113) and disbursed as follows:

Key activities undertaken included:

41

Construction of community roads in the Western enclave;

Construction of thirteen {(13) 12 Unit Sanitary Facility for various communities and school;
Construction of eleven (11) 24 Unit Sanitary Facility for community and School;

‘Construction of six (6) Unit classroom block for 5 Schools;
Construction of three (3) Unit classroom block for 3 Schools,

Construction of one.(1) Story Dormitory Facility for SHS School;

Support for construction of 260 Borehole across the country;

Construction of 4 artificial soccer turf with flood lighting and wire fencmg,

Donation of Covid-19 relief items to Western and Central Region;

Continued sponsorship of 2,217 students consisting of 2,146 local and 71 international

scholarships to undertake graduate level studies. The: scho[arshrp covers full tuition and
boarding; and

Continued support for 200 medical students studyirig in Cuba.

Events after the reporting period

There have been no events subsequent to the réporting date that would require.a disclosure

or adjustment to these financial statements but notice of the impact of COVID 19 in the
business. must be made.
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